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BEFORE THE 

BOARD OF PHARMACY 


DEPARTMENT OF CONSUMER AFFAIRS 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA 


In the Matter of the Statement of Issues 
Against: 

ISRAEL EBENEZER SOW A 

Pharmacy Technician Registration 
Applicant 

Respondent. 

Case No. 5454 

STATEMENT OF ISSUES 

Complainant alleges: 

PARTIES 

1. Virginia Herold (Complainant) brings this Statement of Issues sole ly in her offi cial 

capacity as the Executive Officer of the Board of Pharmacy, Depar1ment of Consumer Affairs . 

2. On or about May 1, 20 14, the Board of Pharmacy, Department ofConsumer Affairs 

received an application for a Pharmacy Technician Regi stration fro m Israel Ebenezer Sowa 

(Respondent). On or about April 7, 20 14, Israel Ebenezer Sowa certified under penalty of perjury 

to the truthfu lness of all statements, answers, and representations in the application. The Board 

denied the application on February 20; 20 15 . 
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JURISDICTION 

3. This Statement of Issues is brought before the Board of Pharmacy (Board), 

Department of Consumer Affairs, under the authority of the follow ing laws. All section 

references are to the Business a nd Professio ns Code (Code) un less otherwise indicated. 

4. Section 4300, subdi vision (c) of the Code provides, in pertinent part, that the Board 

may ref use a license to any applicant guilty of unprofessional conduct. The board may, in its sole 

discretion, issue a probati onary license to any applicant for a license who is guilty of 

unprofessional conduct and who has met all othe r requirements for licensure. 

STATUTORY PROVISIONS 

5. Section 475 of the Code states: 

(a) Notwithstanding any other provisions of this code, the provisions of this 
division shall govern the denial of licenses on the grounds of: 

( I) Knowingly making a false statement ofmaterial fact, or knowingly omitting 
to state a material fact, in an application for a lice nse. 

(2) Conviction of a crime. 

(3) Commission ofany act involving di shonesty, fraud or deceit w ith the intent 
to substantially benefit himself or another, o r substantia lly injure another. 

(4) Commission of any act which, if done by a licentiate of the business or 
profession in question, would be grounds for suspension or revocation of license. 

(b) Notw ithstanding any other provisions of this code, the provisions of this 
division shall govern the suspension and revocation of licenses on grounds specified in 
paragraphs (1) and (2) of subdivision (a) . 

(c) A license shall not be denied, suspended, or revoked on the grounds of a lack 
of good moral character or any similar ground relating to an applicant's characte r, 
reputatio n, personality, or habits. 

6. Section 480 of the Code states : 

(a) A board may deny a license regulated by this code on the grounds that the 
app licant has o ne of the follo wing: 

(I) Been conv icted of a crime. A conviction w ithin the meaning of this section 
means a plea or verdict of guilty or a conviction fo llowing a plea of no lo contendere. 
Any action that a board is permitted to take fo llowing the establ ishment of a conviction 
may be taken when the time for appeal has elapsed, or the judgment of conviction has 
been affirmed on appeal, or w hen a n order granti ng probation is made suspending the 
imposition ofsentence, inespecti ve ofa subsequent order under the provisions ofSection 
1203.4, 1203 .4a, o r 1203.4 1 of the Penal Code. 
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(2) Done any act involving dishonesty, fraud, or deceit w ith the intent to 
substantially benefit himself o r herself or another, or substantially injure another. 

(3)(A) Done any act tha t if do ne by a licentiate of the business or profession in 
q uestion, would be grounds for suspension or revocation of license. 

(3)(B) The board may deny a license pursuant to this subdivision only ifthe crime 
o r act is substantially re lated to the qualifications, functions, or d uties of the busi ness or 
professio n for whic h application is mad e. 

(b) N otwithstanding a ny other provisio n of this code, a person shall no t be de nied 
a I icense solely on the basis that he or she has been conv icted of a felony ifhe or she has 
obtained a cer1ificate of rehabilitatio n under Chapter 3.5 (commencing with Section 
4852.01) of Title 6 of Part 3 of the Penal Code or that he or she has been convicted ofa 
misdemeanor if he or she has met all applicable requirements of the criteria of 
reha bilita tion developed by the board to evaluate the rehabilitation of a person w he n 
conside ring the denia l of a license under subdivision (a) of Section 482. 

(c) Notwithstanding any other provisio ns ofthi s code, a person shall not be denied 
a license solely on the basis of a conviction that has been dismissed pursuant to Section 
1203.4, 1203.4a, or 1203.41 of the Penal Code. An applicant w ho has a convictio n that 
has been d ismissed pursuant to Section 1203 .4, 1203 .4a, or 1203.4 1 of the Penal Code 
shall provide proof of the dismissal. 

(d) A board may deny a license regulated by this code on the ground that the 
applicant knowing ly made a false statement of fact required to be revealed in the 
applicatio n fo r the li cense. 

7. Section 493 of the Code states: 

Notw ithstanding any other provision oflaw, in a proceeding conducted by a board 
w ithin the department pursuant to law to deny an applicati on for a license or to suspend 
or revo ke a license or otherwise take disciplinary action against a person who holds a 
license, upon the ground tha t the applicant or the licensee has been convicted of a crime 
substan tially related to the q ualifications, functions, and d uties of the licensee in 
q uestion, the record of conviction of the c rime shall be conclusive evidence of the fact 
that the convicti on occurred, but only of that fact, and the board may inquire into the 
circ umstances surrounding the commi ssion of the crime in o rder to fix the degree of 
discipline or to determine if the convictio n is substantially related to the qualifications, 
func tions, a nd duti es of the licensee in question. 

As used in thi s section, "license" includes " certificate," "permit," "authority," and 
" registration. " 

8. Section 4301 of the Code states: 

The board shall take action against any holder of a license who is guilty of 
unprofessional conduct or whose license has been procured by fraud or misrepresentation 
or issued by mistake. Unprofessional conduct shall include, but is not limited to, any of 
the fo llowing: 
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(f) The commission ofany act involving moral turpitude, dishonesty, fraud, deceit, 
or corruption, whether the act is committed in the course of relations as a licensee or 
otherwise, and whether the act is a fe lony or mi sdemeanor or not. 

(h) The administering to oneself, of any controlled substance, or the use of any 
dangerous drug or ofalcoholic beverages to the extent or in a manner as to be dangerous 
or injurious to oneself, to a person holding a license under this chapter, or to any other 
person or to the public, or to the extent that the use impairs the abi lity of the person to 
conduct with safety to the public the practice authorized by the license. 

(I) The conviction of a crime substantially related to the qualifications, functions, 
and duties of a licensee under this chapter. The record of conviction of a vio lation of 
Chapter 13 (commencing with Section 801) of Title 21 of the United States Code 
regulating controlled substances or of a vio lation of the statutes of this state regulating 
controlled substances or dangerous drugs shall be conclusive evidence ofunprofessional 
conduct. In all other cases, the reco rd ofconviction shall be conclusive evidence only of 
the fact that the conviction occurred. The board may inquire into the circumstances 
surrounding the commission of the crime, in order to fix the degree of discipline or, in 
the case of a conviction not involving controlled substances or dangerous drugs, to 
determine if the conviction is of an offense substantially related to the qualifications, 
functions, and duties of a licensee under this chapter. A plea or verdict of gui lty or a 
conviction follow ing a plea of no lo contendere is deemed to be a conviction within the 
meaning of this provision. The board may take action when the time for appeal has 
elapsed, or the judgment of conviction has been affirmed on appeal or when an order 
granting probation is made suspending the imposition of sentence, irrespective of a 
subsequent order unde r Section 1203.4 of the Penal Code allowing the person to 
withdraw his or her plea of guilty and to enter a plea of not guilty, or setting aside the 
verdict of gui lty, or dismissing the accusation, information, or indictment. 

REGULA TORY PROVISIONS 

9. California Code of Regulations, title 16, section 1769 states: 

(a) When considering the denial ofa facility or personal license under Section 480 
of the Business and Professions Code, the board, in evaluating the rehabilitation of the 
applicant and his present eligibility for licensing or registration, will consider the 
following criteria: 

(1) The nature and severity of the act(s) or offense(s) under consideration as 
grounds for denial. 

(2) Evidence of any act(s) committed subsequent to the act(s) or crime{s) under 
consideration as grounds for denial under Section 480 of the Business and Professions 
Code. 

(3) The time that has elapsed since commission of the act(s) or crime(s) referred to 
in subdi vision (I) or (2) . 
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(4) Whether the applicant has complied with any terms of parole, pro bation, 
restitution or any other sanctions lawfully imposed against the app licant. 

(5) Evidence, if any , ofrehabilitation submitted by the applicant. 

I0. California Code of Regulations, title 16, section 1770 states: 

For the purpose ofdenia l, suspension, or revocation ofa personal or fac ility license 
purs uant to Division 1.5 (commencing with Section 475) ofthe Business and Professions 
Code, a crime or act shall be considered substantially related to the qualifications, 
functions or duties of a licensee or registrant if to a substantial degree it evidences 
present or potential unfitness of a licensee or registrant to perform the func tions 
a uthorized by his license or registration in a manner consistent w ith the public health , 
safety, or we lfa re . 

FIRST CAUSE FOR DENIAL OF APPLICATION 


(February 6, 2008 Criminal Conviction for Vandalism on February 2, 2008) 


II . Respondent' s application for li censure is subject to denial under section 480, 

subdiv isions (a)( I ) and (a)(3)(A) of the Code in that he was convicted of a crime that is 

substan ti ally related to the quali fications, duties, and functions of a registered pharmacy 

tec hni cian, and would be a ground for di scipl ine under section 4301, subdivision (I) of the Code 

for a registe red pharmacy technician. The c ircumstances are as fo llows: 

a . On February 6, 2008, in a criminal proceeding e ntitled People ofthe State of 

California vs. Israel Ebenezer Sowa, in Orange County Superior Court, case number 

08CM00916, Respondent was convicted on his plea of guilty to violating Penal Code section 594, 

subdivisions (a) and (b)( l ), vandalism with damage over $400, a felony whi ch the court agreed to 

red uce to a mi sdemeano r w hen Respondent completed graffiti removal and payment of fines. 

b. As a result of the conviction, the court sentenced Respondent to serve 20 days 

in the O range County Jail , with pre-custody credit for six days, to be served with the Ca!Trans 

physical labor program. Respondent was granted probation for three years. Under the 

Grafitti/Tagger Terms and Conditions of Probation, Respondent was o rdered to complete graffi ti 

removal for 200 hours, not own or possess or associate with anyone in possession of a ny paints, 

marke rs or tool s used to mark or deface a surface, not communicate with, accompany, or 

associate with taggers, not wear or possess any article of clothing to signi fy membership in a 
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tagger group, and to pay restitution to reimburse the victim business for the costs associated with 

graffiti removal. Respondent ' s driving privileges were suspended for one year. Respondent was 

further ordered to pay fee s and fine s, and to stay away from the victim/business. On March 27, 

2008, the court revoked Respondent' s probation after he was cited and released by the Orange 

Police Department for being in possession of a 10 oz. can of aerosol paint, he was accompanied 

by another tagger, and he did not possess a valid picture identification to avoid disclosing he was 

on probation. Respondent failed to appear at his probation violation arraignment hearing and a 

bench warrant was issued for his arrest on May 12, 2008. Respondent's probation was reinstated 

on the same terms. At a hearing on July 10, 2008 , the court reduced probation to informal for the 

balance of the term 

c. The facts that led to the conviction are that on the evening of February 2, 2008 , 

officers with the Santa Ana Police Department were patrolling the Westend District when they 

observed Respondent and three males facing the east wall of a grocery store. As the officers 

approached, the officers observed that Respondent and another male held cans of aerosol spray 

paint. When the officers directed their spotlight, Respondent and his accomplice ran 

approximately 15 feet and threw their cans of spray paint over a chain link fence. Upon contact 

with the four individuals, the officers could smell a strong odor of aerosol paint in the immediate 

area. A white truck parked in the store 's parking lot was freshly spray-painted with the letters 

" OCDX3" on its driver's side door and the roof. "OCDX3 Drifters," the tag for an Orange 

County street gang, and the monikers "Demon" and " Psycho" had been spray-painted on the east 

wall of the business. On the west wall, " OCDX3" and the mo nikers " Dream Killers" had been 

spray-painted on the west wall of the business. All of the spray paint was still wet, indicating it 

had been recently applied. The officers retrieved the two cans of spray paint from where 

Respondent and his friend had thrown them. Inside a sport utility vehicle owned by Respondent 

the officers found a third can of spray paint and a jumbo permanent marker. The car stereo was 

playing loudly. All four individuals were arrested for felony vandalism and participating in a 

street gang. During questioning, Respondent told an investigator that he was an active member of 

the Orange County Drifters gang. 
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SECOND CAUSE FOR DENIAL OF APPLICATION 


(Ju ne 13, 2008 Criminal Conviction for Possession of Graffiti Tools on March 14, 2008) 


12. Respondent's application for licensure is subject to denial under section 48 0, 

subdivisions (a)(1) and (a)(3)(A) ofthe Code in that he was convicted of a crime that is 

substantially related to the qualifications, duties, and functions of a registered pharmacy 

technician, and would be a ground for discipline under section 4301, subdivision (1) of the Code 

for a registered pharmacy technician. The circumstances are as follows: 

a. On June 13,2008, in a criminal proceeding entitled People ofthe State of 

Cal{fornia vs. Israel Ebenezer Sowa, in Orange County Superior Court, case number 

08CM00916, Respondent was convicted on his plea of guilty to violating Penal Code section 

594.2, subdiv ision (a) , possession of graffiti tools, a misdemeanor. Pursuant to a plea agreement, 

the court d ismissed an addi tional count of violating Penal Code section 853.7, failure to appear. 

b. As a result of the conviction, the court suspended sentence, and Respondent 

was ordered to pay fees and fines. 

c. The facts that led to the conviction are that 40 days after his previous arrest, on 

March 14, 2008, officers with the Orange Police Department were investigating an alarm at a 

commercial property when they observed Respondent and two friends walking through the 

parking lot. All three males were wearing dark clothing a nd gloves. The officers made contact 

with the three individuals; none of them were carrying identification. T hey told the officers that 

their vehicle had run out of gas, so they were walking to a friend 's house. When Respondent 

identified himself as the owner of the vehicle, he admitted he lied about his identification because 

he did not want to admit he was on probation for vandalism. Inside the beltline of Respondent's 

pants the officer found an aerosol can of paint, and a permanent marker ins ide Respondent's front 

pants pocket. During questioning, Respondent adm itted that they had not run out of gas; he 

parked in the lot because they intended to tag properties in the area. All three were arrested for 

possession of graffiti tool s, cited, and released with a promise to appear on May 12, 2015 . 
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THIRD CAUSE FOR DENIAL OF APPLICATION 


(June 10, 2009 Criminal Convictions for DUI on March 21, 2009) 


13. Respondent's applicati on for licens ure is subj ect to denial under section 480, 

subd ivisions (a)(l ) and (a)(3)(A) of the Code in that he was convicted of crimes that are 

substantially related to the qualifications, duti es, and functio ns of a registered pharmacy 

technician, and wou ld be a gro und for di sc ipline under section 430 1, subdivision (I ) of the Code 

for a reg istered pharmacy teclmician. The circumstances are as fo llows: 

a. On June 10, 2009, in a criminal proceeding entitled People ofthe State of 

California vs. Israel Ebenezer Sowa, in Orange County Superior Court, case number 

09CM05080, Responde nt was convicted o n his plea of guilty to violating Vehicle Code section 

23 152 , subdivision (a), driving under the influe nce of drugs/alcohol ; and Vehicle Code secti on 

23 152 , s ubdivisio n (b), d riving w ith a blood alcohol concentration (BAC) of .08 percent or more, 

mi sde meanors. 

b. As a res ult of the conviction, Respondent was granted informa l probation for 

three years, a nd se ntenced to serve five days in the Orange County Jail , to be served in the Cal 

T rans/Physical Labor p~ogram. The court furth er ordered Respo ndent to comple te a three-month 

Level 1 F irst Offender A lcohol Program and a MADD Victim Impact Panel session, pay fees and 

fines. and comply w ith DUI probation terms. On November 12, 2009, Respondent's probatio n 

was revoked for fai lure to completed the MADD session. The court reinstated p robation on the 

same terms. On April 29, 2010, the court revoked Respondent's probation for fa ilure to pay 

restitution to the victim . The co urt reinstated Respondent ' s probation, and modifi ed its term s to 

permit Responde nt to co mplete eight days of community service in lieu of fin es. 

c. The facts that led to the convictions are that on the evening of March 2 1, 2009, 

a patro l officer w ith the Santa Ana Police Department was stopped at an intersectio n observing 

vehi c ular traffic whe n he obse rved a vehicle attempting to make a left turn. As the ve hicle 

entered the intersection, it suddenly s topped to avoid colliding w ith another vehicle who had gone 

throug h the intersecti on agains t a red light. Respondent, who was the fourth vehic le in line, rear-

ended the car in front of him . The officer had Respondent and the victim move to a parking lot 
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near the intersection where they were both interviewed. When speaking to Respondent, the 

officer observed that he had a d istinct odor of alcohol on hi s person, and his eyes were bloodshot 

and wate ry. A seco nd officer evaluated Respondent and conducted a series of fie ld sobriety tests 

whic h Respo nde nt was unab le to compl ete as explained a nd demonstrated by the officer. 

Respo nde nt provided two breath sampl es whi ch we re a nalyzed by the preliminary alcoho l 

scree ning device with a BAC of 0.162 and 0.164 percent, respectively. Respondent was arrested 

for driving unde r the influence. D uring booking, Respondent provided a blood sample that was 

analyzed with a BAC of 0. 14 percent. 

FOURTH CAUSE FOR DENIAL OF APPLICATION 

(Dangerous Use of Alcohol) 

14. Respondent' s application for licensure is subj ect to denial under section 480, 

subdivision (a)(3)(A) ofthe Code in that on March 2 1,2009, as d escribed in paragraph 13 , above, 

he used alcohol in a manner that was dangerous and injurio us to himself and to others when he 

drove a vehicle whil e impaired by alco ho l and caused a collision, which wou ld be a ground for 

di scipline under section 4301 , subdivision (h) of the Code for a registered pharmacy technician. 

FIFTH CAUSE FOR DENIAL OF APPLICATION 


(September 28, 2011 Criminal Convictions for Making Criminal Threats & Vandalism 


on September 26, 2011) 


15. Respondent' s app lication fo r licensure is subject to denial under section 480, 

subdi visions (a)(l) a nd (a)(3)(A) of the Code in that he was convicted of crimes that are 

substantially re lated to the qualifications, duties, and functions of a regi stered pharmacy 

tec hnician, and would be a ground for d iscipline under section 4301 , subdivision (I) of the Code 

for a registered pharmacy technician. The circumstances are as follows: 

a. On September 28, 201 1, in a criminal proceeding entitled People ofthe State of 

California vs. Israel Ebenezer Sowa, in Orange County Superior Court, case number 

I I CM 134 14, Respondent was convicted on hi s plea of guilty to violati ng Penal Code section 422, 

making criminal threats (Count 1) , and Penal Code section 594, subdivisions (a) and (b)(2)(A), 

vandali sm under $400 (Count 2), misdemeanors. 
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b. As a result of the convictio ns, Respondent was granted infor mal probation for 

three years, and sentenced to serve 170 days in the Orange County Jail on Co unt 1, and 10 days in 

jail o n Count 2, to be served concurrently. Responde nt received pre-custody credit for three days. 

The court specifically denied Respondent' s request to serve the time on work release, county 

parole, or community serv ice . A protective order was issued for the victims. Respondent was 

further ordered to submit to a Fourth Amendment waiver, not use or possess any dangerous or 

deadly weapons, pay fine s and fee s, and pay restitution to the victim(s). At a hearing on April 9, 

20 14, the court ordered Respondent's proba tion revoked for failure to comply with its terms. 

Re spondent' s probatio n was re instated of the same terms. 

c . T he facts that led to the convictions are that at approximate ly 2 :38 in the 

morning on September 26, 20 1 I , the Santa Ana Police Departme nt was dispatched to a residence 

regarding a famil y di sturbance. Witnesses stated that Re sponde nt came home after a ni ght o f 

drinking and was playing hi s stereo in his room so loudly that it woke up e veryone in the house . 

After confronting Respondent about turning the music down, he punched a family member' s 

bedroom door and knocked it off the hinges. Respondent threatened fami ly me mbers that he was 

going to kill them. They knew he had a g un and were very afraid of him , so they called 9- 1-1. 

When questi oned by officers, Respo ndent denied having any weapons in his bedroom and gave 

officers permission to search his room. Inside a locked safe, the officers located a chrome 

revo lver, three rounds of .3 8 ammunition, a blue bandana, and black gloves. Respondent was 

arres ted for making c riminal threats. After booking, Respondent told investigators that he 

purchased the revo lver off the street for $200. The firearm was not registered. 

SIXTH CAUSE FOR DENIAL OF APPLICATION 

(Apri19, 2014 Criminal Conviction for Hit & Run Driving on February 2, 2014) 

16. Respondent' s application for licensure is subject to denial under section 480, 

subdivisions (a)(l) and (a)(3)(A) of the Code in that he was convicted of a cri me that is 

substantially related to the qualifi cations, duties, and functions of a registered pharmacy 

tec hnician, and would be a gro und for discipline under section 4301, subdivision (l) of the Code 

for a registered pharmacy tec hnician. The circumstances are as follows: 
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Ill 

Ill 

a. On Apri l 9, 2014, in a criminal proceeding entitl ed People ofthe State of 

California vs. Israel Ebenezer Sowa, in Orange County Superior Court, case number 

14CM03000, Respondent was convicted on his plea of guilty to v iolating Vehicle Code section 

20002, subdivision (a), hit and run with property damage, a misdemeanor. 

b. A s a result of the conviction, Respondent was granted informal probation for 

three years, and sentenced to serve 10 days in the Orange County Jail, or 10 days in the CaiT rans 

physical labor. Respondent was further orde red to pay fees, fines, and restitution to the victim. 

c. The fac ts that led to th e conv iction are that at approximately 3:00 in the 

morning on February 2, 20 14, the Santa Ana Police Department was dispatched to investigate a 

hit and run in a residentia l neighborhood. The officers observed a Dodge Ram truck parked along 

the c urbli ne. A Toyota Ca1my was lodged under the truck's rear fender and had major front end 

damage. The Camry was registered to Respondent's mother, however, when they went to the 

registered address a block from the collision, no one answered the door. A w itness stated that she 

immediately after the collision, she saw two males running away from the area. The next day, a 

family member advised the Santa Ana Police Department that Respondent was the driver. On 

February 6, 2014, Respondent went to the police department and admitted he had been driving 

the Camry and caused the collision. Respondent told the officer that he had no valid reason fo r 

leaving the scene except that he panicked and his first instinct was to run home, which was only a 

block away. Respondent was arrested and cited for hit and run driving with property damage. 

SEVENTH CAUSE FOR DENIAL OF APPLICATION 

(Dishonesty- Making a False Statement of Fact Required to Be Revealed on Application) 

17. Respondent's application is subj ect to denial under Code section 480, subdivisions 

(a)(2), (a)(3)(A), and (d) in that he made false state ments of fact required to be revealed in his 

application to the Board. Said conduct would be a ground for discipline under section 4301 , 

subdivision (f) of the Code for a registered pharmacy technician. The circumstances are as 

fo llows: 
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a. Respondent signed his Pharmacy Technician Application certifying under 

penalty of petjury under the laws of the State of California that his answers in the app lication 

we re true and correct. He da ted the applicati on Apri l 7, 2014, however, the Board did not receive 

the a pplication until May I, 2014. Along w ith hi s Application, Responde nt enclosed an 

" Affidavit of Completed Coursework or Graduation for Pharmacy T echnician" from Eve re st 

College da ted Apri l 15, 2014. 

b. Questi on Number 7 of the App lication asked: 

Have you ever been convicted of a ny crime in any state, the U SA and its terri torie s, 
military court o r foreig n country? 

Check the box next to " YES" if you have ever been convicted or plead guilty to any 
crime . " Conviction" includes a plea of no contest and any co nviction that has been set 
aside or deferred pursua nt to Sections 1000 or 1203.4 of the Penal Code, including 
infractions, mi sdemea nor, and fe lonies. You do not need to report a con viction for an 
infraction with a fine of less than $300 unl ess the infrac tion invo lved alcohol or 
controlled substances. You must, however, disclose a ny convictions in which you 
entered a pl ea of no contest and any convictions that subsequently set aside pursua nt o r 
deferred pursuant to secti ons 1000 or 1203.4 of the Pe nal Code. 

C hec k the box next to "NO" if you have not been convicted of a crime. 

You may wish to pro vide the following information in order to assist in the processing of 
yo ur appli cation : descriptive explanation of the circumstances surroundi ng the 
conviction (ie. Dates and locating of incident and all circumstances surrounding the 
inc ident. ) If documents were purged by the arrest ing agency and/or court, a letter of 
ex plana tion from these agencies is required. 

Failure to di sclose a di sciplinary action or conviction may result in the license being 
denied or re voked fo r fal sifyi ng the applicatio n. Attach add itional sheets if necessary. 

c. In response to the question, Respondent checked the box " YES." Respondent 

declared the following convictions: (1) People vs. Sowa, June 13, 2008 , Orange County Superior 

Court, case number 08CM00916 (paragrap h 12, above); (2) People vs. Sowa, June 10, 2009, 

Orange County Superior Court, case number 09CM05080 (paragraph 13, above); (3) People vs. 

Israel Ebenezer Sowa, September 28,20 11 , O range County Superi or Court, case number 

11 CM I 34 14 (paragraph 15, above). 

d. Responde nt fa iled to declare hi s February 6, 2008 conviction for felon y 

vandalism (paragraph 11 , above) even though the convicti on met all criteria for disclosure. The 

Board also alleges that Re spondent dated his Appl ication Apri l 7 , 201 4 so as to avo id declaring 
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hi s A pril 9, 20 14 criminal conviction for hit and run driving, as described in paragraph 16, above. 

Because Respondent' s Application package included a document dated April 15, 20 1.4, and 

because the Board did not receive Respondent' s application package until May 1, 2014, the 

Board alleges that Respondent's failure to declare the April 9, 2014 conviction on his Application 

was intentiona l, and demonstrates dishonesty a nd deceit. 

PRAYER 

WHEREFORE, Complainant requests that a hearing be held on the matters herein alleged, 

a nd that fo llowing the hearing, the Board of Pharmacy issue a decision: 

1. De nying the application of Israe l Ebenezer Sowa for a Pharmacy Technician 

Registration; 

2. Taking suc h other and further action as deemed necessary and proper. 

D ATED: --_ _ 'f-'-------L/_<3--+-l'---/-~
HEROLD 

Exec~ Officer 
Board of Pharm acy 
Department ofConsumer Affairs 
State of California 
Complainant 

SD20 15700856 
8 1 078882.doc 
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